

# **Rochester Hills**

1000 Rochester Hills Dr. Rochester Hills, MI 48309 (248) 656-4600 Home Page: www.rochesterhills.org

**Minutes - Draft** 

## **Green Space Advisory Board**

Chairperson Gerald Carvey Members: Tim Gauthier, Richard Graham, Adam Kochenderfer, Lynn Loebs, Dahlvin Peterson, Samantha Phillips, Beth Tilove Council Member Nathan Klomp Youth Representatives: Kelsey Jackson, Laisa Magucha, Michelle Thorpe

Tuesday, March 22, 2011	7:00 PM	1000 Rochester Hills Drive

## **CALL TO ORDER**

Chairperson Carvey called the Green Space Advisory Board meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

## **ROLL CALL**

- Present 7 Gerald Carvey, Tim Gauthier, Lynn Loebs, Beth Tilove, Adam Kochenderfer, Richard Graham and Samantha Phillips
- Excused 1 Laura Douglas
  - Absent 1 Dahlvin Peterson

Non-Voting Members Present: Kurt Dawson, Mike Hartner, Nathan Klomp, Laisa Magucha, Roger Moore, and Michelle Thorpe

Non-Voting Members Absent: Kelsey Jackson

Others Present: John Staran, City Attorney

Vice President Peterson and Youth Representative Jackson provided previous notice they would be unable to attend and asked to be excused.

**Note:** Laura Douglas was marked as excused since she resigned as a citizen representative to accept a full time position with the City in February 2011.

## **APPROVAL OF MINUTES**

2011-0126 Regular Meeting - February 22, 2011

Attachments: 02-22-11 GSAB Draft Minutes.pdf Resolution.pdf

A motion was made by Loebs, seconded by Tilove, that this matter be Approved. The motion carried by the following vote.

Aye 7 - Carvey, Gauthier, Loebs, Tilove, Kochenderfer, Graham and Phillips

Excused 1 - Douglas

Absent 1 - Peterson

**Resolved** that the Green space Advisory Board hereby approves the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of February 22, 2011 as presented.

### COMMUNICATIONS

No communications were noted.

### **PUBLIC COMMENT**

Chairperson Carvey noted that Mr. Jayson Graves, resident of Rochester Hills, was in attendance.

### UNFINISHED BUSINESS

#### 2011-0073 Green Space Properties Protection Policy

Chairperson Carvey introduced Mr. John Staran, City Attorney, who was invited to discuss the questions submitted by the GSAB members regarding the preservation of green space properties.

*Mr.* Staran opened the discussion by acknowledging the Board's primary concern has been the wise and prudent ways of expending the Green Space Millage funds to preserve in perpetuity various natural green space areas that could be affected by development in the City. During the past year, the discussion of water reservoirs brought a concern forward of how to protect the City's parks and green spaces for the future. The Green Space millage ballot language makes it very clear that properties purchased with Green Space millage funds are for permanent preservation of undeveloped open [green] spaces and off limits to development.

*Mr.* Staran offered the following methods for consideration that can be done when purchasing park lands and green space properties in the future:

1. <u>Designate properties as parks</u>. Incorporate them into the Parks & Recreation Master Plan which would disallow sale of park property without the vote of people. However, the parcels could be removed from the plan.

2. <u>Deed restrict properties</u>. Impose a conservation easement over it. However, to make it enforceable, you have to grant the easement to a "grantee or third party" that has the power to enforce the deed restriction. The City could also consider a different approach for the purchase of future green space properties by buying conservation easements or development rights to prevent the owner from developing the parcel. This could be a challenge since most land owners want fair market value in exchange for selling all the rights to the parcel.

3. <u>Resolution affirming intent or adoption of policy</u>. City Council could adopt a resolution or policy reaffirming that from this point forward green space properties are to be permanently preserved and never sold for development purposes. However, resolutions and policies are potentially subject to change as times and elected leaders change.

4. <u>Adopt an ordinance</u>. However, ordinances can later be amended or repealed and are subject to initiative and referendum.

5. <u>Charter amendment</u>. An amendment would proscribe conversion of use of park property. It may affect the ability to use park property for roads, communication towers, public utilities, drainage, oil and gas extractions, etc. It is a cumbersome process and requires the governor's approval of the language and the vote of the people.

*Mr.* Staran suggested that if GSAB decided to make a recommendation to City Council for some form of resolution or ordinance or deed restriction to protect parks and green space parcels, it would be prudent to apply it as broadly as possible, recognizing that some of the City's parks are fully intended to be active recreation parks.

The following points were noted:

\* The discussion referenced the questions submitted by GSAB members that included conservation easements, deed restrictions, resolutions of intent, zoning regulations and restrictive covenants and land trusts.

\* Different portions of green space properties acquired with Green Space millage funds cannot be treated differently and are to be maintained in their undeveloped, natural state.

\* Placing wood chips on pathways through green space properties would be a violation of the American Disabilities Act because the material is an obstacle to some. Green Space millage funds cannot be used to change or improve the open space parcels.

\* Discussion will continue on whether millage funds can be used to develop and carry out a Stewardship Management Plan for acquired green spaces.

\* It may be possible to sell "wetland banking rights" from green space parcels to interested parties and use those funds as a source for a stewardship management plan.

Board members expressed their appreciation for the discussion with Mr. Staran. He exited at approximately 8:00 p.m.

The Board consensus was to draft a recommendation at the April meeting for consideration by City Council regarding the protection of parks and green space parcels.

2007-0753 Update regarding any nominated properties

#### "319" Conservation Easement Grant

*Mr.* Mike Hartner, Director of Parks & Forestry, noted that the appraisal has been received for the "319 grant" and the Administration has begun negotiations. There are three different appraisals: one for the entire property, one for development rights for the 26 acre portion of the property, and one for the underlying value of that portion.

*Mr.* Kurt Dawson, Assessor/Treasurer, noted that when the document is made public it will be provided and explained to GSAB which will tie into Mr. Staran's discussion.

**2008-0130** GSAB Administrative & Strategic Sub-Committee

Chairperson Carvey noted no report at this time.

2008-0131 GSAB Communication, Promotion & Media Sub-Committee

The Discovery Hike Steering Committee provided an update. Youth Representatives Thorpe and Magucha noted where the informational flyers will be posted, and distributed the Discovery Hike cards for the Board's review. Ms. Loebs noted Bordine's will be one of the sponsors for a raffle prize.

Ms. Tilove reminded members about the upcoming walk with Naturalist Lance DeVoe, on Saturday, March 26, at 9:00 a.m. to become acquainted with the hike route and generally spruce up the parcels at the same time. An alternate practice walk will be on Saturday, April 2, at 9:00 a.m. There will be five stations, each with a parcel map depicting the parcel terrain. The information tent will be at the starting point of the hike which will be located at the north end of the parking lot of the Rivercrest Medical Center complex on Avon and Livernois Roads. There may be some volunteers coming from the Clinton River Watershed Council if needed. A press release will be forthcoming from the Mayor's Office.

The Board expressed appreciation to Steering Committee for their fine efforts.

#### 2008-0132 GSAB Property Nominations & Acquisitions Sub-Committee

Member Gauthier noted nothing at this time.

2008-0133 GSAB Stewardship & Advocacy Sub-Committee

Chairperson Carvey noted that since there are now five (5) members on the Stewardship Sub-Committee which would require a Special Notice for all sub-committee meetings, he would officially withdraw from the sub-committee. The current voting members are now Graham, Loebs, Peterson, Phillips. Youth Representative Thorpe is also on the committee.

### **NEW BUSINESS**

None reported at this time.

### ANY OTHER BUSINESS

Chairperson Carvey noted that the proclamation of appreciation to former member Laura Douglas will be forwarded to her.

2011 Goals & Objectives

The consensus was to combine information from Attorney Staran along with Member Gauthier's suggestions and continue discussion at the April meeting.

## NEXT MEETING DATE

- Tuesday, April 26, 2011 at 7:00 p.m.

## ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to discuss, Chairperson Carvey adjourned the meeting at 8:40 p.m.

Minutes prepared by Denise Mertz.

Minutes were approved as presented/amended at the \_\_\_\_\_ 2011 Regular Green Space Advisory Board meeting.

Gerald Carvey, Chairperson